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Review of Policy Options for Stabilisation of Private Rental Housing
Market in Korea: Focusing on International Comparison

3Hk5] Han Man-Hee™", B} & Park Joon™"

Abstract

The purpose of this study is to examine the policies for stabilisation of rental housing market such as rent control,
housing benefit, and provision of social housing. This study adopted three methodologies to extract main policies
for stabilisation of rental housing market and analyse the applicability of the polices in the context of Korea. They
are an extensive literature review on social housing policies, comparative analysis with the liberal welfare regime
countties by Esping-Andersen(1990) category, and interviews with housing policy experts. The polices for the stabilisation
of rental housing markets can be categorised into three: 1) rent control to reduce the asking price; 2) increase
of the affordability of lower income group with housing benefit; and 3) reduction of the pressure of rent increase
by supplying more social housing in the market. Considering the proportion of private rental housing market is
40% in Korea, introducing a strict rent control is likely to lead to the side-effects of shift of the burden to tenants
at early stage and the decrease of rental housing supply. It would be more appropriate to introduce lessor registration
system with an effort to secure more affordable houses than rent control. Expansion of housing voucher needs to
be carefully handled considering the level of income of the beneficiaries as it has problems of increase in rent level
and budget limit. Lastly, a strategy to increase the stock of social housing by public and non-public sector and
competition with private rental housing so that the entire rental housing market can be stabilised and the burden
of tenants can be reduced. A system which can invite the participation of ‘national houisng and urban fund’, non-profit
organisations, and limited-profit organisations to build social housing needs to be considered before introducing the

strict rent control.
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* Rent Control
* Incentive for Lessor

Lowering Asking
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of Lessee ¢ Low-Interest Loan

Mitigating Pressure | ® Providing More Alternative Housing
(Public / Semi-Public / Social Housing)
* Infrastructure Provision(roads etc.)

of Price Increase
in the Market

3 Aolz gslels WALTE H2le1H, <Table

1> o] Jefel 87714 Q5] A AF 5

P, A S o etz e 4 ol

gio] A9 JorEage] 24 L Ssted
o] Al 7] Holo] ABFTEE BE SUst] 28
ol Sich 53] ARl s g
getoly] Slef BRAEE TS Sk o £
A Folh FEERE 59 2 108 Ao, BBY
o), SReie), A, A 5 et o
o] 23S S Qlelw RAe] el siet A
Tl F15-8 TRIAtiREe] R 245 §)

S AA, 58, B4 52 TR Adehe
TLHO(New Stay) A=t IS o]9f oA
78] Bz A 55219 Al3st:
€ FEERA ARE 24 AlskE
T A A e it W Aoiel 8714
it eAle Wt Alefeleks Holld & A7t o
B FSE 5% AREY 29 A1 BA ol AH
Mde s e Hoz dys] Sttt

Aol BAAA =279 A e e
F ofd S HoteAls S7MER AR i g
A3t el wiet 2ol 3] e =7EAd
A= 7AE S8l dHile] 877H e H5= 1
= w7Fe0] S W, vy ot 2

==
=4

M
filo



o] A}l tigh AR Yot 2§ S migle] &
& F= =7HE%= QIrh Esping-Andersen(1990)9] &
ZAAel ofgt ARSI EXAHA| =71E-2 %7t
of, AR BEAAHA A7FE2 Al Lake A2
7} gtk tiAsle 3 B AlEEE] 3E2

B2 A A Lok F7HEClA BEHoR Xy
ot 28 1ste] AN eyt Ayt HollA

o, ARS|RIEFe] EXAA Z7HEe] ARl 35
T} Z2] HolA nlFolu et T2 AfF0] B2
AA =7pETE 9 Zog Hrig 4= ik

QHE 5t BER Phelst PRIele] 25
o

-

o2

(Y

F 29 AAUHTOS BAJsHe Makg Hol1l 9]
o} = 25 AR olE AREAR] tiAs] St
o] 720 BAAC] T AT te] 1%
o Ui JH0) SUEL S5 St

w
(1
=
I
2
0z
2

MEdofl UAOIML| DALt

- , A 5 TheRt el A
g 7HeAlE 28 =7 BAHRE Fasit
_%_

A 20l FF= nAE f9deer: QI

0 -

AP, T8 HARGFH 5= Zdsk] whzeltt
(Bramley and Watkins 2016). T2hA] AH = A4tk
o] GARtlA mIE FAA, F92 matet oA 24|
APgat oo mjAls AR SEH s
ettt o] wigofx] g Mo} A5 TA|(Policy
Dynamics)= A2 §H38l £H2 8215,
SHARE QAR B3 9 ©
AFa7go] 2 Aol AARA o7 JIFe nXry
Real-Dato(2009)2] F4-& oJu|7} Qi) o= EX
FEIZAY] o2& St AAS 2 woll=
2 Tl (Aggregative Approach)©] E Q3RS ||
SHh(Real-Dato 2009, 138).3)

o|2fet A HFHAlS Hdithe A 9A o

A AZE A el BArEe St

9,

In
e
1o

N

r_l

1o
o e 1o e

710l SRtk s 59 ARNISFO] EXAA| =
7He2 ddiE A, AR e ArelEle] F
a giE Foll doiFEArge] A4S sidsh=t,
oefet A AES T2 ARFF0] BEXAA =7t
Sofl oA six] 4719 ATE 7 o Qe
A2 oot diFEi S A4 lolMe =
AAIEL | 04 59 of7E = 280l 58
St 718 @47} = oJoF qHkAngel 2001; O'Sullivan
and Gibb 201204 T 3 714 Q3 Q4= Aoz

3) 1 ok 9] B 71s/ds Brohe vl Thes| 71450 HigRte] ofle]; ofg] 821 FAlel Akl t e oA AR
F(Multi-Criteria Decision-Making Modelye 752 B 87T k= T8 Mulliner, Smallbone and Malliene 2013y EFZ/d0] 312 HAES
9] 017921 et FEERQ £4 AR2E Basolo and Yerena(2016)5 HZE 4.

4) Angel2001)2 Rt =7Fe] FEPGAS BrIRte]l Slot, Z8A)- ATe]- A

2] Wit o]elo]] e ] T Enmironmeny 67HAIE AISHAA

T FAX LA Housing Subsidy Regimes)©ll ZAIAIY ke 3510 Aol 22iut A AeiFeig o] Ajge]l Qo ZAIA]
o] FAHR] T84S 2h= A 02 Hol & AU (Evercon 2016). ER} Tandis and McClure2010)= FEHRGA] ALt ZA|R A A

malele] Laslo} Tk 49k



0
r°1'

2 718 Apdo]| TEsls Aot} & o
! 311—’?‘_ |2} shdele Bzkgo] aiEch,
1 Fake} Hlg-S ZkshA AE R AAsfor &
7401"4<Apgar 1990). BRI} 2751 FEY

xgxw Aw* A gl o] wizks:
[e]

v

O_Qll_,
o2

0] A g GAAIER == T UEet
L o] A e HEE LA} Zo] 2951 97
fEe] o B3t Fde Bl A iﬁ} ESAR
o] Hale] met HAlE AFsshs B eAle shetst
7|% 3k7 HijdAte] Yl aq.
SN QR o] AL |40l EAHo g
Zxjo] $EAFE 20108 Sl HA EHT}E o}
Hol1 it} FEEFEC] 100%E HolAl
7¥A0] Pl wet -8 SHoA= TH
Q71 M B dF A o= gk o]
o] 87t S71% W, B SHAA
2e0] slto g AMESFO] 4o 2
AL Hﬂol‘ﬂl‘:‘ Ade] 25 5o& ¢
9 5he dHidlo] S7FehHA A

ﬁ,
0%, )
o,
mlo

SR i
N
i)

o
4

A

o

¥oHorr oo
o N

~fz“
231

el

)
Ji&

0

IT&J

A0l AF 35S
A7t DA= 115101 A sEEe] EolE A
ole} Zhe AuiFEIAPEe] FE2AQ1 Wsl= QIS A
3R A, T 9A 52 SHeA Wkt o]
JZ] I SIthRonald and Jin 2015).

AHFHPAE A F7kR= A4 Q1 wfjef 21 ¢

126 ZEXT X943 (2017. 9)

drbAe] g ol%) oSkl 5ot 2o
o] AEElo] Qlirt. o2 $I8) AR Feing
Fo] 10090 o] 27] ZHAE < EH%F:H s 2t

o olrjzele] g Bk 2|4

HEAIE A A Wlxu Vs e
Eole Zo= giedl it 22 A 55 2

oH
Qe ddiFEAY a3 Foks 3
1, Jefelt Yarlo] 7|dshe 7] Aolg of @
A Eol=ph A o Fa% YR diFEAL gl
TRk T g Ae] JESTS SYsior & Wa
gol AAL ik

ot Wi=toll M A= A Aok B Ak
B0 B7UA 5 FA9H wdol AN 4 ik
SHEATE o2’ 1#A19] TS =517] o] ol Al
=7} AgEIodE AT Yelso] e
A wiekg T melslo] Bate] 4] ri2
28 71535t ZAlzof st HHst AET} HiEA] A
agslolo} gict,

fu

AP S35}

r

g

2. SX|Hmol S ACHEEAIE

am

A= A 59 A=t EUEAE o2
AT F7FEE 2450 JARA - 72k Aol wet
FEAPGol HZohke WAo] tha: Zfol7t Qlet. o]
o =7 EAS mefshs Wl f8% BHER
Esping-Andersen(1990)2] ZA]A|A|(Welfare Regimes)
Ma& & 5 =, o] HAAIA 2B (Welfare Regime
Model)}& XA H R4S B2 TH5H2] 49
o= & S vl St Esping-Andersen(1990)°114]
L BAAE OJgt 29 (Welfare Product)2 o127
7HAl(Household), A& Market), =17 KState) 7Hf| HlE
5}5%01] FTHS T =S Al 7R A, = AL

FFOSocial Democratic), R4F2(Conservative),



Table 2 _Type of Welfare Regime Olofl ol ARo] EXAAZ AHEH Lt
Social Democratic | Conservative Liberal 2F2 X|(Malpass 2008),” 17FE Uti5E44
Welfare Regime | Welfare Regime | Welfare Regime 711,101]/\1‘}_ ‘E%’% wsle Aggy] gRolch

0:

Classification

* Conservative

Main Features : $:f§ izh;;zz; Welfare System | * L?ast \Wélfare ' Ao 1989 UthE FARent Control)
* Diseriburion Polcy |~ | St | FEhe Wins Pl o oroy mat o)zl Buy-coLet) B8

Countries | Sweden, Demark | Germany, France | USA, UK, Australa 2] EHC= ‘?lZl%‘EHZéElL} AAHL-go]

Note: Reconstituted from the work of Esping-Andersen(1990). 20008 Z 9904 ZZoll= 20%7HA] A

25k ok vhA #Hd & F£Q gErE &

A0 (Liberal Welfare Regime)= w78t o] 2 Ao vzt 9 eimrt ASste] Yt A

A2l oo 8 =7HES TS <Table 2>9} O] AwllS 86k T4l thA] thiFEI Q7=

2t} SHK(Heath 2014; The Observer 2016). ™A gh=iof|
e o] Al 7] 8 F ol BT Rl & A =05 dis A A2t 5 sk HES o

St s |= offrhy ghollA] AdiaElof o B A2 T2 ARl E 4 2l

e S =0fk= o QlolA, S ARRIFS] =

7VEAE ARlFEY 3 5 AR EXAAE 3. oh= QAUCHFEIA|IZS E4 3 Mt 2N

TISHL QIHal Hol= ok ERt 5 5 X8

o] =7IEAH 35 WEEE ZRksle] AlFolvt Qf=arh H|wsto] k0] QITiSEEiApgo] 71 FEg

#1921 5ol et BiZshs Wajelrtal Yk ofgrte 3 B2 v Al 7R s & & Sl A WA

ot JoiFEiAge] dieh o] fole ATt A B wizidiEEe] Sl ARjsks HiFo]
E7 293t Al 71 ol@]oll= EERt Al Atke= Ao, 557 & FAl 7 o] of
A ot gt o] Aol i g @t P = HES Rtk Aot 20159 S EW S AR
7} 2 Hlls= ZF 7@ Alefolof s, AS0] 4] 71, A 9 A= 19608t &, 7 4& 1,910%F
AALiberal Welfare Regime) 752 F o2 5t 71& FEEFEL 1023%°1cks) 24| 35 Z 27}
£ o] HigtZgt Zlo 2 Belt E5] of=to] APt AR FHE 1,0409F 5(53.6%), UThHE FERS 9005

a3, ol g=o] thE U=heak= g9 1980d B(46.4%)°1H, °] F S5Ath7t 5.209, TATh=
o & (Thatcher) F2] 013 EXAA7} AFs|EE 41.2%% ZA8kAL St ol WIdiSEAE ]

rl

18

3) SRS 73 o] ARS1S) -9l ARIThs oI, BFE TAe SolAlole] BAAAIE: AI-] BN Produccivise Wele
Regime) = A Kwon 2005). Z-> WO 2 gl=io] FEERHAE "gﬂ'—;ﬁ-l FAEAAAProductivist Housing Welfare Systemy 2
Ash7 1= Fla Grange and Jung 2013).

6) =2 WA 2| FEE] 4790 olE= T Hgol 2 H2 = AR (Voigtlaender 2009; Kemp & Kofner 2010), RIZFATH A
T 35ALAAC] ZIAA AP Al digh TEjet viES ke Holde Aot A=

7) Ea= Housing Asset-based Welfare= 7|k €h(Toussaint and Elsinga 2009; Gent 2010).

B 015K B ARE 1E0R A7 11 B T 35302, 40057k e U1, 97, Qi el vla] ol a2

010



Figure 1_Tenure Type by Country SIS 218t HASSTH AlHEZA
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Table 3_Changes in Sales Price and Cheonse
(unit: %)

Year 07 | 08 | '09 | ’10 | °11 | '12 | ’13 | 14

Change in
Sales Price | 31 | 31 | 15| 1969 | 0 | 03| L7
Change in
Cheonse | 26 | 1.7 | 34 | 7.1 | 123| 35 | 47 | 34

Source: Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and Transport. 2015.
www.stat.molt.go.kr.

2000 RO 82 Zp=E A RFFo] Wb}
of7FAe] vlsf z1Fo] |, o= T8 AfAte] Hlsh
AAAES] A FgAdo] Aot §l5-& om|et
k. of7]el] Z4x} ZAlellA] BAlE ZRkelh= Al QL
1, ARG YRE A2 A of Hesh=
A FgEE©] Al olR&ol Hlel B =rh= 37t

2] a2k ZpmoA UEk= 2 o)do ' At
9] ofalgo] &

St AiFErAe] 545 sk SlsiA 2
=9] = WS}t FAIE Hlwgt
o] <Figure 2>°t}.12) of7|oflA]

o

o oF A
e R

o

2 42 AA AASP) A 2100 Z2H42) 9%

b B

= e AT A F(H2 S7HeS Bl vt

2 2] WS W, 5] A9 200098 Alelel
 Hlid oY Folg Holx

el
A 88 AR A /o Ui 25

ZﬂE—OJ v‘_’_—%ﬂ drf 5] ik %ixlﬁ} T}*ﬂﬂ o 2
Zol2tal & 4= glrt.
A A BAIAA =7 S A
EE SEARE AHE oz AFskE =7k gl
o, ohik Al T A=S 2-8ohiA A eR

0] RS 53] 2008 Al
A AP ol% the LRk
TR e HolwA WEAe]
27 veRted), ol o Bn

)

The A U Q%19 F84<
ofETHL ShA I,
SHt F=(England) 9] AHE 4

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

[ -0~ England =0~ USA  —&— Australia  —0— Korea

= vl 2, F Aol efa
<l ot E’l% gt 11 ZFrolA

Source: 1) England: The Index of Private Housing Rental Prices, IPHRP.
2) US.A.: US Census Bureau.

3) Australia: Australian Bureau of Statistics.

Aot de & 4= ek =] A

12) BANWI vl F=, 259 A9 A 7IEslel dad o

4) Korea: Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and Transport.

d2 AAL Aze 7 5 AU 57T 5 2006E-7EH

England/] LZJ‘?Jtﬂﬂll—dThe Index of Private Housmg Rental Prices, ©]5} IPHRP)S 2 H5}al Q)= HHH, mj=ty} _Q__l_'oﬂj\i]— mﬁ

uHEshe At g
2oal] RIRL. B2 7

° o | 41} nj=ke AEol 219 71321 Gross Rent, 2
- 1980FtHRE HAEZE #3E FA 4101

oL ANARS R W Fl S
Y] W} A7 WD 9,



Escrow Account)E ofl Y= == oh= A, vl
9] Section 8 Housing 5°] 7L AtEloltt. gh=9] H-¢-
AIA slEe 27 sl Aotz SE5ke Al
7F lon, ofz dzjo] Hzxsitt. AA| F=oME
Lt AthA(Rogue LandlordyS THJa}7] S1al 5=
Ae] Bago] =ols| i glok, obaA] Eqe
ol2A ot gk
S} 2pg50] BAAA 2} 7ol 27 Aolr}
U Foke s solch 74 2 BAk 83
olfe AR 8] Fetet Pefase] el of
ke AHoltt Y drjaSel B sefse &
S U} e A DEeltas 2asof o
T HZ2Z0] QHE a2 AHgsls B
A BABA G le] S oFI
o). Sle] A9l ZEARRI 45 A2t T 2
1o = ZHET l=T|(Frick and Grabka 2003), ¥t
o] 7% ool et HT-L o}y AAH R o]F ol
Z] Bl Qitk T3 QIrfele] HhE ofRL YA
A e Rl Lo
Ale] 75eld|E: @A) 25711 HlahE Elo] Q=
5 QIefaSel ek A 7t oletAA) ok 9l

o= E‘ﬁ:ﬁ]‘ﬂ“ﬂ% Z} ’%‘3}% A7} OV—.‘E A
ok ol APl B AstAzle BRIE, At
Al =Y Al BHETE Sol= W AR B8
771 2AI7E ok ZARG0] EXAIA 57
O] AL ZAIS](Tax Evasion)©] AFEl7F go] Hal
= glonhy ldiag A8k o] JA|

Aeob= g2l doias

o] ekl A5 &4

247 A2 Z ol

]
A S L REERY

A WPl Ao
:‘
4

A=A U]‘E‘PSOM T‘li‘%ﬂ

o]
o i) e

el TRIdEiFEe] AAIShe HlFo] i
= o

BEE R?J-OJ RO —
7 ) el TIAIES] B8] AriE oz v
1 grile] Pt o BE 5 4 9k

-
& etk g0 dsae
1. UhE ABAISH Utz o

1990e] o] FAR} =G A7k e A
F 50 AT} 24 PR B §7 Fho] A
S99 Al gl Aghoo] of

13) 2014~2015% =] A SJm]ofe oF 529] MEER F7JEHMRC 2016).

14) AAGU=E AYdR FEEH W &

130 ZEXAT H947H(2017. 9)

Fohe 7P 2t FEY] AR ARA, 14D dHiE AR =1



ofl thet dthE Vet ARtsk= A o=2A ARA ¢
& T1AkSecond-Generation Control)(Arnott 1995)
= Y= AlgKTenancy Rent Control)(Basu and
Emerson 2003)7} FARIEL o= di’lo] 71& Al
2pete] Ak ARSI A= AR Aok
Boll A= Vo] 7FssteE k= o] d Qo]
s A SHAN = Do) ek Zos & 4
AsLoH, Sl ot dpAle]l FA7E §lof Yl
o

A dee AAE g 22471 e L AR

_4
251 9oz A9 e R o Ao
ot tiAlzE deiglo] —/F e FH ddi=E
AR B} A2, FARER A
Al 2-g5k= AW 715 U E(Local Reference Rent),
el 46 B2 A Ak 0 ) 4k
TS 561 9] U 2

EO]E}.

ARR]RIFTE0] BAAIA =752 7
= AP deFEAR el S
o} I8l ojAR ol & He oS IS
2 AsiFae] i Fgol B4 Haslel gk 4
15t Adtigs FAIS Al-iS 7
A2 Q8] ZolEt WK B3 AslF) ol
Mo R Beke) 3] ok 739 ] 2 A
9] QgL 7187 oficke Rt
BhAS o] Zeeh viels Bsta oty
2 AV QAR FAZIRE Z71, FEe) A

)
i)
AN
O\I
_|

a5 IRHIHEEARE O] QHgol| Z]ofditke 7
o] A71=]2L UtkMunch and Svarer 2002; Bradburd
Sheppard and Bergeron 2006; Fitzenberger and Fuchs
2016). 12t o]} oA Zefohe wAIHE HE9
A= Q=] FEAPGO] oo s Ui 3w
SO A, RO We] Aot k] S4-0) 5
Blo] A Aot 52 & & UThMarks 1984; Early
2000; Sims 2007). THEpA] G5 S Adlm 4]
O] a7t Aol G Tt A AurQl i
& 59 st 7HE 4 ikl Fs & )
o, AF Ao o] Al Al AT AL
g 24 s A1Y] BeAdS s IE it
(Amnott 1995). “1e{tt AF {A]0] Zo® F7] o
2pQ10] Folo], Uil HHE F o] A a&
o] EAIZ} WA=} IthBasu and Emerson 2003).
ole} T2 =2 oA = ol HAR7T Fofslior
2 5] Al FHz-S Hlwoh= 2 ol
o] A= oBA APFelA A5kt 4 Q=] 11
A N et Bebs o B A nhsh-Lf 5}
O]EkBuckley and Kalarikal 2005 =), 1 HiRF
A ARR]RISF0] BRIAA] =7 1989 o]
Faroll At o] i #34 AF FES R
o Qe B T ARRFEE S| s,
SdoflMet ol ZEddim 013& H=E A5t
5 SHHA ¢ ﬂid NA AIA SE Fo= ol B
sl T WUeE = vl A HAEAAE(CRA)
oF *ﬂ@ﬂi@zﬂE(HHTo—g &-§5to] 97 ZEAL
FE5] At diFge 35T & s Aot
+ 59 Hekdo] Fasitt
gl 14H = e 22 7Rt oo
A =9 AR5 HESE] flelik= ool +=
_45] /\}oLC e} }_ol;d Hog _,_E% oHo]: o]—]:]— Es ] _]’7_3:]
Sflof o AR o2t Aok AAfl= thE o=yt

ol

ol
o
oy
rlo

[ A
s H

il

J

H




ST A eRtE PoE F53 71E g
Z7hEet gl et 2felet. A A A

A 915 5 A=l A o= sl AlA Il
= AR Zo] AP oS AR AR Agkeh=
Hioto] AAEL = Z-2(Arnote 1995; Haffner,
Elsinga and Hoekstra 2008), @A $F=12] Aci=&]
Aof| a7k & 4 Qlek @7|A Al Aol
SEARE 2 5hoA Aok ddiE AlRental
Brake)”} Y= QHIRTIE 714 4] Folal, @3]
VA7l ANE 7St 9t 9 g vt
SItHKholodilin, Mense and Michelsen 2016).

B9 Al ddi= ARl qlo] RIZFITTH
o] HIZo a7t AXFS Alsditt. F=r] ddiF
EAPEE 19901 Z71x] =Rt del= AstellAl
i8] sgo] ool tHl= s fAg

USIEt. o]Zlo] 7FsE olfi= WA HIFEIA|
o] ZFA|sh= HIFo] 19911l A APl 991

Az A7) whzelth 22 olopr|shd &
Pt B8 Abel vt @714 AlF

5 o] $2182 ol Zole}

Mr mr oX 4> nS
ri’L T{\ﬂ 2 o
N,

o,
fu)
yl
1o
ol
iy
&
o>

QJujFee] H1gL AR 4 T4 B Ao 4
Bo| | Fz0] BIf)o, 9l Tzl b]

So] A7) 40%ell o124l Slof HHiz 1A Al AT

132 ZEST X943(2017. 9)

Aol drfele] Qlthasel oigt Tt 3=A

AstAI7)i Alo] 1T GIEk, EE PN £

o} A RAY SR AU TR S}

= ARRFE AL 5 FA] ool mhet =A] 2el7t
g 4 qlenR o WIEA] v#sfop gtk (Murie
2017). oA F=9] ¢ 20009 d=7t E5
P& A AN E SAIh: WFETh= Ao 2
FTE0] Fue Gichs WRkor A 24
o= v} QltkEvercon 2016).

o|g7 = AhFEIAEe] B/t AHH o) of
eret off, 7t A= Ale AP PdEEtar
ULt olofl A ALSlFEIA| O] e} T 9
el SEAEE E8Jolk= 5 AiFEArE 34
5k mldal] UrHs Weke AES|oF gict. ofet 2
ditof| A HE = (Camden) 2] Pz AFRHA]
Hr=Qdet TS 20144 HuA ] g2 -2jof7
A HEZE A0t (= AekAlel kb A
do] = 7F F83 wE& A AIARRE (Tes))
A= Al Hof 1ol ke QR A A
Sflok sk=tl, of7]ofhe dARR1] A6 717, Bl At
ot A 11 7| 2 AE1E Fol ZFET(Scanlon
and Whitchead 2014, 5).

te Mz

Nomo > e
lo > w9 A

rlo

N



2. xIQl Xi &l QIk. mlFe ghA] A mgkso] Y Ale] Al
3} @7, LIHTCOL CRAAIES E85t] 7154

dApR1e] ReseEs Eol7] Slo Ashke e FAFEo] AFet diFElS A& 0= Fuste] A
Hzxg, vk9A, 2821 5 o’ FHI= Zh=oilA 253 dEs T Arhn 259 AHfol=
BN A-8Ee] gt ARl AP Tes] LIHTC®} F-EAMFEASA] k713 (Threshold)
A9 ehslEnt o2} o] ETi2 18 o AE-S Foll wikildisEE g os 45kl 9l
o, k9l #A o2 5 AREAECR 7155 ThHWood 2001).18)

= Zog HUET QtkStephens 2005; Zedlewski Skl A9 259t A Qlo] FAH] B
2002). “12fu o] A1 2| ¢s Sfiohs Wk o] Ao} g2 mjajsiylom, 2015 AR FEH}
0] v, G, ZFA SOl Aokl Q= Hier &2 A= oA ARFEAlR] Qiek d@Hl, AFHl

o] Ytz AJ5oleks FAEE Zol YA =2 o16= A Atz 2folof] F53E FAGA=
2(Susin 2002; Laferrere and Le Blanc 2004; Fack 2006; <t FEHEFAHAILS] Gutof tieh v wENE 53
Gibbons and Manning 2006 &%), JiFEA<] ¢F PHEF =2 tHeA] 2ol FEERe-A 9
e EHsE| flolie datele] ¢ e} oA Y7 2A vEhd 9hA, diErt iAo w2

ofN ol

ArHIe] AHAE SISl A m bEE ARl FAGAAEY fat o Erhe A
S0 3 s Zo] Fasitt 2 wsle, o]2 2A2 thzAl Ao FARE
ZoH BE AR HES Qe A% Salt @ejo) Fepe RS Sfshe Aol ristct

HEE fgdoa AHEH <Table 4> 2t 2t

Qo] BAAA 27t Z A4

AXCh LR, AZHl 20106).

R

7FA XS S8Rt vl Table 4 _Housing Benefit by Country

7|&0 2 oJ=ko] H|ZEo] 14%2 Country Korea England US.A. Australia

7],1(]— =7 u]—;ll-% 3% 7].1(]- 7_(_4' Beneficiaries Housing Voucher | Housing Benefit | Housing Voucher | Rent Assistance

" ] ) : (House-Holds) 0.97m!> (15) 4.7m ('13/14) 3.4m (10) 1.2m (13)

ul=to] AL o] Yxjel 2|

o el 735 ol Al Al Proportion 5.2% 14.0% 2.8% 11.0%

Z]z [l S 21z

éZl'h_q— (‘)j]%ﬂ E}Ooh‘)—l— B Source: 1) Korea: Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and Transport.

Sh| 23sln 9oug o= 2) England: Department for Work and Pensions.

WA st S S 3) US.A.: HUD Daa.

@11% %—’@'@, oz % %_9_7]— 4) Australia: Australian Bureau of Statistics.

15) B0] FAIR0le) A% Aol Adehs A FAE IS I ue Amoleks ZRiold e 1)
TP gs

16) LIHTC %3] 7} 1805+ 7F-Y(Eriksen 2009).

17) University of Birmingham, Housing & Community Research Group2] Anita Blessing BPAlR= QIEJHE B3l o] tiekst AH24rto]

zgoR vlzold U, nlFg thed) A950) BAAA) 12 B0 R Wsle AL 0Rst 9 4 ki 73 ni
Aol oY el iRt Bk SR ARadat AR oS SAlO sl Rl AHSHAL S Blessing 2016).

18) =t FE9 e F4I2Q1 Department of Communities and Local Government2] Deputy Director of Better Rented and Leasehold Sector®]
Jane Bvercone RIZF QJciEEEle] B Shefel] Sigt g 2 A ARilo] 7 BEH AR oIS Everon 2016)



SEAIRE 7RI ¢S Sish= ol 7F 2 ddE
< AP F= Aotk =0 FAH] HEAE]
F713°|(Housing Benefit= @A A= 114714
St =] FARA] 24| Aike] oF 80%E A4
ot ALz HlFo] Frh e, s, ek 2015).
1980t B4t oA AASRE F=o] FAF
o AARLE A AR AR 2SR FAS
2] ApHRES Eol= Hl A5 = HSlo, ol%
A= p<eo] 7hhEA| FeotaA A sy 4
=75l & Fgol] Ha Qlek FAF] WAle] A1
<2 A= Aol g Fgo] 215207 A7 w
2ol @712 02 Hgago] £ HolAH, 4712
o2 & ui= Ax ARIFEE 3gste] deske A
o] & a&=olthMurie 2017).

S FEMEQA O] il B8 A=
tiFEo] SrfiE]ojof It Eobd 4= qlomg,
=9 ool Bzo] RIZt KRk At gizt
= Fgol FoAd o AEE of= 5

=] L=
o] Zasteh 17 Aol

]

i

O

u)
oz
oS

]
=

114
=
N

r
N o
nig‘lll
o
1

She= =< sAEE
ZHIFERl Ao FFAA o4 EHE
Slall A dsk= AA|, 58, TFEA] 2|eE AHEet
Ao 3L ¢l8l Hg @ Sofishs Heke
e "9 Qrt St Tk Tizkldiseio] Ayt 5
ol Zast e tFobA 22 4= = oY
71 S88AS I gart oot A 1z
o8] Fgof QoA videdAe] Bt Hgto]

Faste, vgeigAlo] Abslae A4 Hofoh
AmA o sk A5 7he] Gt Basict

A
Wl

19) o7]of| s=sfRte} vla=s]At 7t @k

(Mullins 2016). oldf ARR}FE] AES Sfs A=
(Pension Fundy& ZERHeE Thofet Al xgo] 7155t
L5 AleE 7Wdslof shH, o] IPgeilx] ek 9
H| G2 dAo] o] 585 (Blessing 2016).

3. CHa|z=Edo| =ithet Thed UTHFEIAIS] 715

thAlE o] S5 weiste] AT Al ofF &
2IOHS B W2 2k off g, ITdHEE
= HIER 55 A2 AHE oR 354, 5
5SS w2Ele] 52 5 A 24l 5
driFEel #5oz 53] Rz HlFo] 2
57do] At AriFEAellA AHl-dA I =

J
ol
RS
a
ol
&
30,
o)
rr
ol
0,
ini
T
>,
jules
2
ro

2011). ARIRIF0] EXAA H7FaE HIRE e
1 =7Fs0] olE T F5-2 flof -l
A3t A T8 F 37 T AEFE] i
k= 30%00 Boll A5 FAMEA 71995 5t
AL QJek. o]9f T2 ARFE] ZA2 ARRRIFFO]
BAAA Z7FEe] EFOR, o]5 EHiR ARSlFH
A Byl RIZkIiEate] AAA A7 7}

3 BUAY Yol =elF & gt ol

R

5% rlo

1o

or lo J

(Lennartznz, Haffner and Oxley 2012).20)

EAE $HA 125lloF ShWalker and Niner 2012).

.]I
e}
20) ofefh AEEle] Wa sl BokL ofS ASFFES Shasty Telshe ZLe Ae o] Hlof 2, e 19r0urlel Al

9] HIFo] 24| 9] 30%714] ARSI, Bt gERE AR 9SS AAH 20148 71 17%2 E018UAL o2 HE

Y L WZRINFES] FHE EEkl 98(Crook and Kemp 2014). HH ITHo] SIS g=to] AlSFElS |k
H] G2 A|Q] FE R Housing Association) 5] AV ARt 2] AR ASIFER] TS Gk 4 QLeA] ool el o2&
A715) % SK= S(Mullins and Pawson 2010), HIG3}IE v gk

134 ZEST H94F(2017. 9)



=0 7B TeSh AEA]] Azl 2kl

A52] BXAA =7 FEa Eol AA| 9 F 5
AUrfseho] 2}2|sl= Hl%% 20159 715 6.6%=E =

N

2
| & =ik XH ol 7 2 Z:-i%%i Ll
| 7kl 35dd & A =
To}z] FRtr) H=o] Ol—% Teo] i?ﬂﬂ‘?ﬂ/ﬂ o]
£ Haop| QIR A Al S7Iske Aol o]
+ tAISE0] S f1et 45 RS eRlsl] 9
SiA =PRI 1 =7 2ol 9 tisH]
/\]741-_,] oﬂ/Hoﬂ cHoH 7‘11-25 uJ_QL/lgo] 9}\0‘:-_ o
ATk

4 E= F9 AdiFEAe] 2el(Unitary or
Integrated Rental Housing Market)2 Kemeny(1995)7}
AXRE RO mA, o] HEO] T3] AR7F ALe]TE
Sur ARelEde] ofghs Al FEEgo] @
skl Q= @AEzotoltf2n

ARl A stH= G 2ol FEEAl
A2 91 8% AP HAL QloH, of= ofy &
2120 oJaf =0]=] 1 Itk Oxley, Elsinga, Haffner and
Heijden 2010; Lennartz, Haffner and Oxley 2012). T
ANFEAP o] B0 8 EAKE AlelFelt 1i7te]
tiFgo] Tk A2 @/dshke 2ol ofdzt 22 Al
oA PSS 3}‘?'1, U eTEE it

Onz

b

d
_l

2l
sfe} 91 5ol o WA drFEy
o Q5 10 HEHIHE A e A
olct.

g Aol GAslelw Aol
]_

7Y, o] A el wkk

21) Kemeny(2006)=
el oFEAge] BAS 2 Jrk 2R,
22) O Uele] 7813
7238 2T BAO

Bl o) osselole] AT 4

ll‘

Qe A 4 lofof k. ol

?fstiA

3 S
et} wrle] me g, ASp 58 7
T 0|} YR I} 5 YA FASE T
2 9ol FYSHES QG AV} otk stoi, vk
Quiet BT 4 UES Ao AR AU
S ek 5 SRR QAT At A A
2 womA BT A4H0z T £

Sff vz SA7E Qlofok 5}%1:1], QAEZofe] 74 o
AR08 AEtE]o] 9l PP ThAl(Limited-Profit
Housing Association, ©|5} LPHA)Z} 71 &8k Eds}

AchMundt and Amann 2010).22 OqEH 73 Oﬂ—
7] z ]ul-x%lﬂﬂ- 7\17\4 1]-ﬂ o]-E—] J_I_oh;H

J?a

1009+ 57} FEZpAL o] (Stock Transfer) Zéil.‘Oﬂ 9
off RIzE v|Pe] FHEGR» o o)x =] |
Rom, A AElEE 10 60% oV "kl
AChHEEE, £49 2008; Everton 2016).

wzrte AT 4 Gl AsFEe AT B
LSS
—

W A 74 AR At BAES FoleiA
Bgeld IR QgL AT 4 9ol ArFEA
7o) el 4 7104E @ 4 9 Zolek. 53]
T8} WAgo] Bts) o] BRIl
Aol e AL R B A9 2 bt
9 ZOR ZhEck 5 A Hgol A Al
g 33 Ihe Sof 9 YHFEARLS BHD 3
S oIz A 502 I8 22 glo] il a7
74 Qist mke 8 % ok

Bl el ZRssteld o A4 ax

F2 45 S ko §F AoA|at, B0l BXJAA|(Conservative Welfare Regime) =7 e 55402

970] A9, EX71 APl kel B3, 1PHAS) AREA S0
SHAmann, Lawson and Mundt 2009)

23) Housing Association®|2} 2= F=0] 32 PFI(Private Finance Initiative), ALMOs(Arms Length Management Companies) 52+
WA Registered Social Landlords(RSLs)2F= 712 WA o7 Ear|w ¢



o] F=E]ofoF e, A RE @ UHEE @
7 4= ofet= A1 P FRIAle] i, @ oot
22 9] 2ol 7hest=s she AR

o] ], @ EAl] $IKIst 5 5 A4 9l

-
")

x
c

1o,

o)

oz

Jeb

¢

i

E

.

)

&

H

k)

i

e

L
AT AN N

A ARRE APFo] HTE, AR A|A,
ofete] ¢4 55 Bl Eelle AolBE(Lawson
2010), LPHAZN= Al=E G4 @ AE|olel 53t
FHE Tgste] -8o17]= o2& Zlolr §=9)
785 St o] ool wet 357159 A
stet A7 5] Si7t 534 (Hybridicy) 0= U
LAl 210Y(Lee and Ronald 2012) AFRS=EY A7 TS
o] Agolgh= o] ol&& -8sl] Sleiri= Rt
o] UthTEialge] nie] thet SHet 23k

78 Ao REGAIA Hrlof & Zlolet. o5
& 2= dlols Adet AR AAER1 128
7Fd sty 9 A71AQ1 Algstel] GAE o=
Zshof & T2 Helct,

9 oA B A 9

iu)
i

H

7%

o ko
Rl

1y

(S

ERstur) ke kEo] A&Hog ZIsEo] gk
ol2fgt A7t AF2le] FHE 71oid A o® T
%17 Itklang and Novy 2013). SFol| A= o] A
£ @AM OE Tsh] 917 gl 7]&olof gith

£ Sl 94208 FXsfoF & Algto 2= Ay
gt o] AT FEat TEE 9 Y] &

golct. k=] AAgelx= LH 5 71E FAoll tist

'~

A

[*]

S

‘— = i
THA|(Limited-Profit Organization) 381} 3= 2]
sk A oetste] et Qe ot s

Sk Zlo] 32go] & Zelck

136 ZEST HM94TH(2017. 9)

V. Z8

A S AaEEe] FAWT 42

wo] Ql}. thrkeo] ARl ol Fa HAzREe

AP A5 QLo 74 Ade] o)t B

EXAIE 52] BAPE et ol AdSellA ofgA
tfQlo] @ot= AtHE F(Asking Price)dt A=k
o] e & Q= HBid Price)2] A2 Y
W=7t ke Zo] e w7 iR Rk
FolAl F=a’t BHA AL = Qi

o] ZAE osffdsr] 91et Wijto == A= Al 7}
2] vyekellA] gdriete] AAE 4 Ak A=

Q) 2L W3] 97 g A S e

4 o o

o

EIAS mE| AR oA

o= L

[e)
o @712 avpEts 714 Rl sl &
7

N
i)
N
I
ot
s
12
i
R
L
ol
el

5
& 50 FAEE e 7hsAdol Az A1Fs]

sfiof 2ttt 244 ddlz 1A A9HE HESIOl &
A TRt 199 e dHiFEe A5 s Sjst
£ 20 @A i SEAEE =Ucks 5 dHiF

S A IRRS Stshe o] SaKoR W



sfek. FA] BAAES) Sh Pz P53t ol
gt A goleke BAHS Tkl Hek
Aol 453} Asle] BHHOR 285t Zol

H}Em S, nmm_i YT VIR A

ke Aol wasic

D2 o
1. AR 2015, “AlIRRe] TA] WS, £ iR AFetA]

B

a9 =91 649 29, Alo.

The Kyunghyang Shinmun. 2015. ‘Introduction of rent control
in Berlin, the city of tenants. June 2, A10.

2. FEWEE 2015, AENES
Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, and Transport. 2015. Molit

|95, www.stat.molic.go.kr

Statistics System. www.stat.molit.go.kr
7& 0_] 2008. Oﬂ—:["— EH/\]Z}_,] q_xg]. EH7]—7S/KC]-%
of et di-s &, BT AR 308: 66-109.

Park Joon and Sonn Jungwon. 2008. Housing market structure

59 &

and policy responses to rising housing prices in the UK. Space
& Enviromment 30: 66-109.
4 9we i Jaks 2015, 93 FARARA sl
20104 ol 4she GO HisE FAlom. B
AFS] 527: 227-266.
Oh Doyoung, Park Joon and Kim Hyeseung. Emerging
trends in housing policy in the UK: Focusing on its ongoing
neoliberal transformation since 2010. Space & Environment 52:
227-266.
e Qo] A g4 B AlEa
QL FEHAT 23 43 2345.
Lee Hojin and Koh Sungsoo. 2015. Consumption and
investment demands for housing. Housing Studies Review 25,

no.4: 23-45.

6. ARHL, A7H. 2016. HEE5S AR FHYH A9

10.

11.

12.

13.

N LR

T A FFIe Tk A ARE FHoR. f5A]
ets]A] 289 13: 137-150.

Yim Hyungbin and Kim Hongbae. 2016. Impacts anlysis of
low-income housing policy on regional economy: Focusing on
the housing benefit program and the housing voucher
program. Journal of The Korean Regional Development Association
28, no.1: 137-150.

. 718 2015, A-GA AUAS FAAIZS] ARt T

g AT FEAIEE 628: 161-175.

Jang Kiyong. 2015. A study on the improvement of rental
housing tax system in Korea. Korea Real Estate Academy Review
62: 161-175.

59 2005, obikE YA 74 B1g 24a)
A FEAT 448: 87-99.

Chung Euichul, Shim Jongwon. 2005. Determinants of ratio

M

of chonsei to monthly-rent-with-variable-deposit contracts in
apartment rental housing markets. The Korea Spatial Planning
Review 44: 87-99.

A1, ST, oA el Rl 7l2s
el F4. FettetaT 219 32: 63-73.
Ji Kyuhyun, Wee Jeonghwan and Lee Changmoo. 2015.

AriAFEE

Selection factors for different types of rentral contracts: An
analysis based on a landlord survey. Journal of the Korea Real
Estate Analysts Association 21, no.3: 63-73.

A0l 2011 =4 Bl oA e Al2g] st
oF % 4 WY =EAT 718: 87-113.

Jin Meeyoun. 2011. Transitional changes and future policy
direction of rental housing system in cross-national
comparative context. The Korea Spatial Planning Review 71:
87-113.

2T, o T 2009. i, A, AA] A 2 A0
Z2] o4, FEHAT 173 43 183-206.

Choi Seongho and Lee Changmoo. 2009. Interpretations of
structural relationships among sales, Cheonsei, and monthly
rent markets. Housing Studies Review 17, no.4: 183-206.
25, v, o 2015. HEAHEES] 2|9 WA}
o FHE FEHIAT 239 43 5-21.

Choi Seongho, Bae Sangyeoul and Lee Changmoo. 2009.
Regional deviation of Chonsei to monthly rent conversion
rate and vacancy rate. Housing Studies Review 23 no.4: 5-21.
Amann, W., Lawson, J. and Mundt, A. 2009. Structured

financing allows for affordable rental housing in Austria.



14.

15.

16.

17.
18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

138

Housing Finance International 23, no.4: 14-18.

Angel, S. 2001. The housing policy assessment and its
application to panama. Journal of Housing Economics 10, no.2:
176-209.

Apgar, W. C. 1990. Which housing policy is best? Housing
Policy Debate 1, no.1: 1-32.

Arnott, Richard. 1995. Time for revisionism on rent
control? Journal of Economic Perspectives 9, no.1: 99-120.
Australian Bureau of Statistics. www.abs.gov.au

Baldini, M. and Poggio, T. 2012. Housing policy towards
the rental sector in Italy: A distribute assessment. Housing
Studies 27, no.5: 563-581.

Banks, J., Blundell, R., Oldfield, Z. and Smith J. P. 2015.
House Price Volatility and the Housing Ladder. Cambridge:
National Bureau of Economic Research. NBER Working
Paper n0.21255.

Basolo, V. and Yerena, A. 2016. Residential mobility of
low-income, subsidized households: A synthesis of explanatory
frameworks. Housing Studies 32, n0.6: 841-862.

Barr, M. 2005. Credit where it counts: The community
reinvestment act and its critics. New York University Law
Review 80: 513.

Basu, K. and Emerson, P. 2000. The economics of tenancy
rent control. The Economic Journal 110: 939-962.

. 2003. Efficiency pricing, Tenancy rent control and
monopolistic landlords. Economica 70: 223-232.

Baum-Snow, N. and Marion, J. 2009. The effects of low
income housing tax credit developments on neighborhoods.
Journal of Public Economics 93, n0.5-6: 654-666.

Berry, M. and Hall, J. 2005. Institutional investment in
rental housing in Australia: A policy framework and two
models. Urban Studies 42, no.1: 91-111.

Blessing, A. Senior Research Fellow. Univ. of Birmingham,
Anita Blessing. 2016. Interviewed by M. H. Ham,
December 17.

Bradburd, R., Sheppard, S. and Bergeron, J. 2006. The
impact of rent controls in non-walrasian markets: An
agent-based modelling approach. Journal of Regional Science
46, no.3: 455-491.

Bramley, G. and Watkins, D. 2016. Housebuilding,
demographic change and affordability as outcomes of local
planning decisions: Exploring interactions using a sub-regional
model of housing markets in England. Progress in Planning
104: 1-35.

ZEAT HM947H(2017. 9)

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Buckley, R. M. and Kalarikal, J. 2005. Housing policy in
developing countries: Conjectures and refutations. World
Bank Research Observer 20, no.2: 233-257.

Campbell, S., Davis, M., Gallin, J. and Martin R. 2009.
What moves the housing market: A variance decomposition

of rent-price ratio. Journal of Urban Economics 66: 90-102.
Campbell, J. Y. and Cocco, J. F. 2007. How do house prices

affect consumption? Evidence from micro data. Journal of
Monetary Economics 54, no.3: 591-621.

Capozza, D. R. and Seguin, P. J. 1996. Expectations,
efficiency, and euphoria in the housing market. Regional
Science and Urban Economics 26, no.3-4: 369-386.

Chambers, M., Garriga, C. and Schlagenhauf, D. E. 2009.
Housing policy and the progressivity of income taxation.
Journal of Monetary Eoconomics 56, no.8: 1116-1134.

Clark, T. E. 1995. Rents and prices of housing across areas
of the United States: A cross-section examination of the
present value model. Regional Science and Urban Economics 25,
n0.2: 237-247.

Crook, T. and Kemp, P. 2002. Housing investment trusts:
A new structure of rental housing provision? Housing Studies
17, no.5: 741-753.

. eds. 2014. Private Remtal Housing. Cheltenham:
Edward Elgar.

Diaz, A. and Luengo-Prado, M. J. 2008. On the user cost
and homeownership. Review of Economic Dynamics 11, no.3:

584-613.

Early, D. W. 2000. Rent control, rental housing supply and
the distribution of housing benefits. Journal of Urban
Economzcs 48, no.2: 185-204.

Engsted, T. and Pedersen, T. 2014. Housing market
volatility in the OECD area: Evidence from VAR based

return decompositions. Journal of Macroeconomics 42: 91-103.

Eriksen, M. D. 2009. The market price of low-income
housing tax credits. Journal of Economics 66, no.2: 141-149.

Eriksen, M. D. and Rosenthal, S. 2010. Crowd-out effect
of placed-based subsidized rental housing: New evidence
from the LIHTC program. Journal of Public Economics 94,
no.11: 953-966.

Esping-Andersen G. 1990. The Three Worlds of Welfare
Capitalism. Cambridge: Polity Press.

Everton, J. Deputy Director, Dept., of Communities and
Local Government. 2016. Interviewed by M. H. Han.
December 19.



44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

Fack, G. 2006. Are housing benefit an effective way to
redistribute income? Evidence from a natural experiment in
France. Labour Economics 13, no.6: 747-771.

Fairchild, J., Ma, J. and Wu, S. 2015. Understanding
housing market volatility. Journal of Money, Credit and
Banking 47, no.7: 1309-1337.

Fitzenberger, B. and Fuchs, B. 2016. The residency discount
for rents in Germany and the tenancy law reform act 2001:
Evidence from quantile regressions. German Economic Review
18, no.2: 212-236.

Friedman, S. and Squires, G. D. 2005. Does the community
reinvestment act help minorities access traditionally inaccessible
neighborhoods? Social Problems 52, no.2: 209-231.

Frick, J. R. and Grabka, M. 2003. Imputed rent and income
inequality: A decomposition analysis for great britain, West
Germany and the U.S. The Review of Income and Wealth 49,
no.4: 513-537.

Gent, W. P. C. 2010. Housing policy as a lever for change?
The politics of welfare, assets and tenure. Housing Studies 25,
no.5: 735-753.

Gibbons, S. and Manning, A. 2006. The incidence of UK
housing benefit: Evidence from the 1990s reforms. Journal
of Public Economics 90, no.4-5: 799-822.

Haffner, M. and Oxley, M. 1999. Housing subsidies:
Definition and comparisons. Housing Studies 14, 00.2:
145-162.

Haffner, M., Elsinga, M. and Hoekstra, J. 2008. Rent
regulation: The balance between private landlords and
tenants in six European countries. International Journal of
Housing Policy 8, no.2: 217-233.

Heath, S. 2014. Rent Control in the Private Rented Sector
(England). London: House of Commons Library.

HM Revenue and Customs. 2016. Measuring Tax Gaps 2016
Edition: Tax gap estimates for 2014-15. London: HMRC Press.
Hulse, K. 2003. Housing allowances and private renting in
liberal welfare regime. Housing Theory and Society 20, no.1:
28-42.

Husock H. 2003. America’s Trillion-Dollar Housing Mistake:
The failure of American housing policy. Chicago: Ivan R Dee.
Tacoviello M. 2004. Consumption, house prices, and
collateral constraints: A structural econometric analysis.
Jowrnal of housing Economics 13, no.4: 304-320.

Kemeny, J. 1995. From Public Housing to the Social Market:
Rental policy in comparative perspective. London: Routledge.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

_.2006. Corporatism and housing regimes. Journal of
Housing, Theory and Society 23, no.1l: 1-18.

Kemp, P. and Kofner, S. 2010. Contrasting varieties of
private renting: England and Germany. International Journal
of Housing Policy 10, no.4: 379-398.

Kholodilin, K. A., Mense, A. and Michelsen A. 2016. Market
Brake or Simply Fake? Empirics on the Causal Effects of Rent
Controls in Germany. Berlin: German Institute for Economic
Research. DIW Discussion Paper 1584.

Kwon, H. ed. 2005. An Owverview of the Study: The
developmental welfare state and policy veforms in East Asia,
transforming  the developmental welfave state in East Asia.
Geneva: UNRISD.

ILa Grange, A. and Jung, H. 2013. Liberalization, democratization
and Korea’s housing welfare regime. International Journal of
Housing Policy 13, no.1: 66-89.

. Laferrere, A. and Le Blanc, D. 2004. How do housing

allowances affect rents? An empirical analysis of the French
case. Journal of Housing Economics 13, no.1: 36-67.
Landis, J. D. and McClure, K. 2010. Rethinking federal
housing policy. Journal of the American Planning Association
76, no.3: 319-348.

Lang R. and Novy A. 2013. Cooperative housing and social
cohesion: The role of linking social capital. Ezrgpean Planning
Studies 22, no.8: 1744-1764.

Lawson, J. 2010. Path dependency and emergent relations:
Explaining the different role of limited profit housing in the
dynamic urban regimes of Vienna and Zurich. Housing,
Theory and Society 27, no.3: 204-220.

Lee, H. and Ronald, R. 2012. Expansion, diversification, and
hybridization in Korean public housing. Housing Studies 27,
no.4: 495-513.

Lennartz, C., Haffner, M. and Oxley, M. 2012. Competition
between social and market renting: A theoretical application
of the structure-conduct-performance paradigm. Journal of
Housing and the Built Environment 27, no.4: 453-471.
Lowry, A. 1993. Landlords and Tenants: Who owns
information, and who pays for it? And how? The Serials
Librarian 23, no.3-4: 61-71.

Malpass, P. 2008. Housing and the new welfare state:
Wobbly pillar or cornerstone? Housing Studies 23, no.1:
1-19.

Malpezzi, S. and Vandell, K. 2002. Does the low-income

housing tax credit increase the supply of housing? Journal



73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

of Housing Economics 11, no.4: 360-380.

Marks, D. 1984. The effect of rent control on the price of
rental housing: An hedonic approach. Land Economics 60,
no.1: 81-94.

Mulliner, E., Smallbone, K. and Malliene, V. 2013. An
assessment of sustainable housing affordability using a multiple
criteria decision making method. Omega 41, no.2: 270-279.
Mullins, D. Prof., Univ. of Birmingham. 2016. Interviewed
by M. H. Han. December 17.

Mullins, D. and Pawson, H. 2010. 10 Housing associations:
agents of policy or profits in disguise? In Hybrid Organizations
and the Third Sector: Challenges for practice, theory and policy,
ed. Bills D., 197-218. Basingstoke: Palgrave Macmillan.
Munch, J. R and Svarer, M. 2002. Rent control and
tenancy duration. Journal of Urban Economics 52, no.3: 542-
560.

Mundt A. and Amann W. 2010. Indicators of an integrated
rental market in Austria. Housing Finance International 25,
n0.2: 35-44.

Murie, A. Prof., Univ. of Birmingham. 2017. Interviewed
by M. H. Han. January 26.

O'Sullivan, A. and Gibb, K. 2012. Housing taxation and
the economic benefits of homeownership. Housing Studies 27,
n0.2: 267-279.

Oxley, M., Elsinga, M. Haffner, M. and Heijden, H. V.
2010. Competition and the social rented housing. Journal of
Housing, Theory and Society 27, no.4: 332-350.

Pawson, H. and Milligan, V. 2013. New dawn or chimera?
Can institutional financing transform rental housing? Journal
of International Housing Policy 13, no.4: 335-357.
Real-Dato, J. R. 2009. Mechanisms of policy change: A
proposal for a synthetic explanatory framework. Journal of
Comparative Policy Analysis 19, no.1: 117-143.

Ronald, R. and Jin, M. 2015. Rental market restructuring
in South Korea: The decline of the Chonsei sector and its
implications. Housing Studies 30, no.3: 413-432.

Scanlon, K. and Whitehead, C. 2014. Rent Stabilisation:
Principles and international experience. London: London Borough
of Camden.

Sims, D. P. 2007. Out of Control: What can we learn from
the end of Massachusetts rent control? Journal of Urban
Economzcs 61, no.1: 129-151.

Sinai, T. and Souleles, N. 2003. Owner occupied housing

as a hedge against rent risk. The Quarterly Jounal of Economics

140 =ZE3AHT H947(2017. 9)

88.

89.

90.

9L

92.

93.
94.
95.

96.

97.

98.

99.

120, no.2: 73-789.

Sinai, T. and Waldfogel, J. 2005. Do low-income housing
subsidies increase the occupied housing stock? Journal of
Public Economics 89, no.11-12: 2137-2164.

Stephens, M. 2005. An assessment of the british housing
benefit system. Enropean Journal of Housing Policy S, no.2:
111-129.

Susin, S. 2002. Rent vouchers and the price of low-income
housing. Journal of Public Economics 83, no.1: 109-152.
The Observer. 2016. Would a rent cap work for tenants
facing £1,000-a-month rises? May 2. http://www.the
guardian.com/money/2016/may/02/would-rent-cap-
work-tenants-1000-a-month-rises (accessed September 25,
2017).

Toussaint, J. and Elsinga, M. 2009. Exploring ‘Housing
Asset-based Welfare’. Can the UK be held up as an example
for Europe? Housing Studies 24, no.5: 669-692.

UK Office for National Statistics. www.ons.go.kr.

US Census Bureau. www.census.gov.

Voigtlinder, M. 2009. Why is the German homeownership
rate so low? Housing Studies 24, no.3: 355-372.

Walker, B. and Niner, P. 2012. Welfare or work? Low-
income working households’ housing consumption in the
private rented sector in England. Housing Studies 27, no.3:
381-397.

Weicher J. C. 2012. Housing Policy at a Crossroads: The why,
how, and who of assistance programs. Washington D.C.: AEI
Press.

Wood, G. A. 2001. Promoting the supply of low income
rental housing. Urban Policy and Research 19, no.4: 425-440.

Zedlewski, S. R. 2002. The Importance of Housing Benefits to
Welfare Success. Washington, D.C.: Brookings Institution.

¢ =2 4 2017, 8. 30.
o AAF AIRFD: 2017, 9. L.
o AAL @Y 2017, 9. 21.



a

o

FAO: AHFEA, = A, F71H] A

i~
i

T
Hlo

)

el

85 712 7Fs/de] Atk AA ddi= A st

shrfol

Z]
]

o] A

A

1 310]
o O

A

| A SEAEE =Yk 5 AiFEA]

el o

©

E

=
£ 4

3t

Aol Hf

%7

APl it

o

1

= 71E %

A

~

7

Sk
)=

AE, Esping- Andersen(1990)] HA|A|A] T4 5 gF

ot S0 B

S

e

o

Welfare Regime) =7 F=2te] H]

_z_o

P

tof 4

A= a2l

1 1
S L

o] 7}50la}

PELEDE

o=

A3

ﬂo

pos

giele] a7rkAe

L=iye)|
[SI=

o= A

Fa

4

s 9l

gick. o]

Elolof

o= 5

sl
Ry |

o] 7]

%1

o
[$]

3 A= A

M= Aoz 37 vl 4= 9lrk 40%°l o]

S

= E;
=2 O

I ol T sk

A

=

_?:1__—_

KB
=

S}
=

sy &
[FR=]

KeX
=

A(Limited-Profit Organization)”} AFS]S+EY

|

31310
[<3Ke)

5

Z
==

o] Mg g, %

__OL
i

sf.

e

Solprle 2ol

iy

A

ol
AR

2~
T

e o] tifgo] S5EA]

ol
=

go] u)%, wizk

=




Appendix e°

Table 1 _Interview Details

Name Affiliation / Position Date of Interview Main Questions
. University of Birmingham . . .. .. .
Bﬁ‘s’ﬁs Housing & Community Research | 2016, 12. 17. || Efﬁ‘i‘;“’groﬁog‘:cﬁug’; S“‘rl;lz;‘;fn rencal housing market
108 Group Senior Research Fellow ! & P
UK Department of Communities * The history of UK social housing
Jane and Local Government * UK government’s response to the increase in rent level in private
. . 2016. 12. 19. .
Everton Planning Economy & Society rental housing market
Deputy Director * The role of taxation in social housing provision
David University of Birmingham * UK's promotion policy for private rencal housing
. 2016. 12. 17. * The role of non-profit organisation in providing private rental
Mullins Professor .
housing
* International comparison of policies in rental housing market
University of Birminaham * Evaluation on the function of housing benefit in stablisation of
Alan Murie };rofessor s 2017. 1. 26. private rental housing market
 Comparison of housing benefit to other policies to provide social
housing
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